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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Franklin County Jail is located two blocks northeast of the courthouse in Winchester, 
on the southeast side of US 41A. Erected ca. 1898 on the site of an 1855 jail, the 
building stands on a bluff overlooking Boiling Fork Creek.

The two-story brick building has an L plan. It stands on a cut and coursed stone 
foundation and has a full basement. A hip roof covers the northwest section of the 
building which originally provided office space and living quarters for the sheriff. 
The ell, which housed the jail cells, has a gable roof. Metal roofing material covers 
all roof surfaces, and there are five chimneys: two internal brick stacks rising above 
the southwest walls, two similar units above the northeast wall, and a brick flue
attached to the same wall.
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A two-story,, projecting ,tqwer, which shelters-the.entrance,/ is centered, on the, three-rbay 
facade (northwest elevation); brick belt courses"{ are, the, on3.y ornamentation .on, the, flat- 
roofed tower. The windows throughout the building have twp-over-twp ^ight. patterns.-. 
and segmental brick arches with plain, stone sills. Bars cover the windows in the ell 
and basement. A corbeled brick cornice girds., the entire touild^ing. except for the south­ 
east wall of the ell. Attached to the corner formed by the southeast wall of the main 
section and the southwest wall of the ell stands a hip-roofed porch supported by simple 
square pillars; the porch roof is covered with metal roofing material. An early photo­ 
graph reveals that an enclosed frame porch once was attached to the center of the north­ 
east wall? the ghost of this element remains visible. Apparently the original window 
was converted to a door when the porch was built and returned to a window after the porch 
was removed. .......^ ., .,.,..,,., .,...- ,,.,- .,.-,

The entrance hall terminates in a double-run staircase and is flanked by large rooms on 
both floors. , Since .these rooms, have, been converted into museum ,»xhib.it space few of the 
original finishes remain. The ell in large measure retains its original appearance. 
This area contains the museum office on the first floor and cell blocks on both levels; 
the latter are steel cages which still have their rudimentary plumbing; the walls of 
some of the icells retain the graffiti placed there by generationso£ bored and frustrated 
inmates. Some of the cells on the second floor now house exhibits.

The property nominated is the entire tract owned by Franklin County, 
rectangular tract which, measures approximately 100 feet by 120 feet*

It is a l/4*racre
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Franklin County was created by the Tennessee General Assembly on December 3, 1807, but 
the county's first jail, a log building, was not erected until 1813. Shortly after 
the completion of the jail the citizens held a gala celebration and accidently burned 
it down. .Early the next year the second jail was built on the site of the first. In 
1855 a new building was erected on the lot adjacent to Boiling Fork Creek, and the 1814 
jail was condemned and sold. The present building, the county's fourth jail, was built 
ca. 1898 on the site of its predecessor. For nearly seventy-five years the Franklin 
County-Jail served as the sheriff's office and county penal institution. A new facility 
was completed in 1972, and the Franklin County Historical Society acquired the old jail.

The historical society rents the building for $1.00 per year from the county court and 
uses it as a museum. The Old Jail Museum, as it is now called, contains exhibits which 
relate the history of the county from prehistoric to modern times. There are five 
exhibit areas: the Indian and Early Frontier Room features aboriginal artifacts and 
tolls used by the early settlers; the War Room houses a fine rifle collection and about 
200 Civil War relics; in the Gallery are books, household items, and musical instruments; 
the Heritage Room contains exhibits on the history of education, literature, athletics, 
and politics in the county; and in a section of the cell block is found the Agricultural 
and Industrial Exhibition.

The Franklin County Jail was a solidly built edifice, and the eighty-year-old building 
remains in good condition. Like similar institutions across the state, function played 
a more important role than style in the design of this jail. Originally conceived to 
keep criminals inside, it now adequately protects the museum collection from theft from 
without.

The building has been a landmark in Winchester for many years, and as the Old Jail 
Museum, it is a tourist attraction. Visitors have the opportunity to see the artifacts 
which help to relate the county's history and examine the interior of a turn-of-the- 
century jail, a facility which many have never seen. The Franklin County Historical 
Society has done a commendable job of renovating and maintaining the building, and the 
organization intends to continue its preservation efforts.
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION The property nominated is a rectangular lot which measures 

approximately 120' by 100'; it is bounded as follows: beginning at the east corner of US 
41A andiFirst Avenue,'SB ? 'heftce southeast along :First Avenue, SE approximately 120'; thence 
northeast approximately 100' to the creek bluff; thence northwest along the creek bluff
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approximately 120' to US 41A; thence southwest along US 41A approximately 100' to the
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The Franklin County Jail is the oldest public building in the county, A courthouse f 
which predated the jail by eight years f was replaced with the present Franklin County 
Courthouse in 1937\

The portion of the building which served as the sheriff r s residence has been altered 
to accommodate museum exhibits f but the rear section which contains the cells remains 
largely intact and unchanged. The late nineteenth^century cells are sheet steel^walled 
cages with riveted strip doors? large padlocks were used to secure the doors. Toilet 
facilities in the cells are rudimentary at best, The more familiar bars and stretchers 
enclose the entire cell area, creating a cage-within-a*-cage arrangement, There are 
cells on both floors of the ell.

GPO 892 455


